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12 | . DEFENDANTS’
| MEMORANDUM OF ,
13 | Plaintiffs, AUTHORITIES IN
| SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR
147} SUMMARY JUDGMENT
AND DISMISSAL
15 JGARY LOCKE, et al,,
16 | Defendants. :
17 Defendants, by and through their attorneys, CHRISTINE O. GREGOIRE,

" 18 | Attorney General, and DANIEL J. JUDGE and JEFFREY T. EVEN, Assistant

19 | Attorneys General, submit the following memorandum in support of their Motion
20 | for Summary Judgment and Dismissal.

21 | I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

» | " Plaintiffs bring this matter as a civil rights claim under the Civil Rights
23 ‘ Act, 42 US.C. § 1983 and other féderal statutes.  They allege that the
24 || disenfranchisement of minorities who are serving judgments and sentences in
25 | Washington correctional facilities in Washington State violates 42 U.S.C. §1971
26 | and the Voting Rights Act (VRA), 42 U.S.C. § 1973. This matter is before the
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| Court on Plaintiffs’ Fourth Amended Complaint in which Plaintiffs allege that
| they are denied the right to vote based on their race, in violation of the Voting

| Rights Act. Defendants filed an answer and an amended answer with affirmative

| denial theory. Farrakhan v. Locke, et al., 987 F.Supp. 1304, 1312, 1313 (ED.
| Wash. 1997).

Defendants attach to this memorandum their statement of material facts
| which will not be restated here. However, Defendants will discuss these facts in
| connection with their legal arguments set forth below
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Under Washmgton s Constitution, a person convicted of an “mfamous
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| Throughout its history, the state of Washington has maintained laws that have
| disenfranchised convicted felons. See State v. Collins, 69 Wash. 268, 270-72,

24 | Washington has provided for restoration of voting nghts of ex-felons. If

25 | he has been convicted of a crime after July 1, 1984, a convicted felon may seek

26 I restoration of these rights through entry of a final discharge by the sentencing
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| court. RCW 9.94A.220. In some cases, convicted felons may petition to have
| their record expunged. RCW 9.94A.220. For crimes committed prior to July 1,

| 1984, the Revised Code of Washington allows offenders to restore their right of
{ elective franchise. See RCW 9.96.050 (A person released on parole may obtain a

certificate of discharge from the Indeterminate Sentencing Review Board

(ISRB)); RCW 9.92.066 (A person given probation or a suspended sentence may
| have his civil rights restored by the sentencing court); RCW 9.95.240 (A person
{ who has successfully completed probation may request the sentencing court to
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withdraw a plea or verdict of guilty, which releases the person from the
| impairments of his judgment and sentence).! Plaintiffs make no allegation that
| they have exhausted any of these available state remedies.

[
- D

Plaintiffs are convicted felons who are serving out judgments and
sentences entered in the Washington superior courts. Because they are all
convicted felons under judgments and sentences that have not been completed,
; none of the Plaintiffs are eligible to vote under Washington law None of

| | Plaintiffs’ convictions have been invalidated by appeal or collateral challenge

\
 either in state or federal court.

(] e T e T e T o T T S S e Ay vy
Hg\DOO\lO\M&WM

! Under RCW 29.07.080, an applicant for voter registration must state: "I
| am not presently denied my civil rights as a result of being convicted of a felony."
| This statute would address any dlscnepancy in Washington law that distinguishes
} voting rights as pohtlcal but not civil rights. See State v. Collins, 69 Wash. 268,
271, 124 Pac. 903 (1912).
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IL. QUESTIONS PRESENTED
A.  Does this Court lack subject matter Junsdlctxon to review, under the

B.  Are Plaintiffs’ claims under the Voting Rights Act that they have
been denied the vote based on race barred under res judicata and collateral
| estoppel where valid state judgments and sentences preclude Plaintiffs from
voting under Washington law?

C. Do Plaintiffs fail to demonstrate that they have the right to vote
where they have been convicted under valid felony judgments and sentences and
therefore are disenfranchised under Washington law?

D Do Plaintiffs fail to demonstrate that t.hey were disenfranchised
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was not even raised as any defense to or argument against felony conviction?
E. Do Plaintiffs fail to demonstrate that under the totality of the

| circumstances they are denied the right to vote based on race?

| IIl. STANDARD OF REVIEW

Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(h)(3) provides: “Whenever it appears by suggestion of

[ N O T T O
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Judgment in favor of the moving party is appropriate when, viewing the

22 [ evidence and inferences arising therefrom in the light most favorable to the

23 | nonmovmg party, there are no genuine issues of material fact in dispute and the
24 | moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c);
25 | Semegem v. Weindner, 780 F.2d 727 (9" Cir. 1985).
26 |
DEFENDANTS' MEMORANDUM IN 4 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY | e o o1 o sion
JUDGMENT , Olympia, WA 98504-0116

(360) 586-1445




Case 2:96-cv-00076-RMW  Document 128  Page 5 of./LQ\_ Filed 08/01/2000

i

The party seeking summary judgment bears the initial burden of
2 || demonstrating the absence of a genuine issue of material fact. Celotex Corp. v.
| Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 324 (1986). There is no requirement that the moving party
| negate _elements of .the non-movant’s case. Lujan v. National Wildlife
| Federation, 497 U.S. 871 (1990). Once the moving party has met its burden, the

6 ‘ non-movant must then produce concrete evidence, without merely relying on

allegations in the pleadings, that there remain genuine factual issues. Anderson v.
Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 248 (1986). |

The Civil Rights Act is not merely a "font of tort law." Parratt v. Taylor,
| 451 USS. 527, 544 (1981), overruled in part on other grounds, Daniels v.
| Williams, 474 U.S. 327, 330-31 (1986). Instead, the court must scrutinize the
particular harm complained of in light of specifically enumerated rights and
| privileges. Baker v. McCollan, 443 U.S. 137, 140 (1979). Thus, the court's
| scrutiny of a 42 U.S.C. § 1983 action must be as follows:

E‘I‘]'n any § 1983 action the initial inquiry must focus on whether the
0 essential elements to a § 1983 claim are present: (1) whether
the conduct complained of was committed by a person acting under
the colorfo{’h gllaat;w’ aqd.l(2) whether this ‘%pnduct de%n\ées gnle
person of the rights, privileges, or immunities secure e
constitutional laws of the United States. ’

Parratt, 451 U.S. at 535 (1981).

Therefore, unless the Plaintiffs can establish that a right of constitutional or
| other federal significance has been violated, they are not entitled to relief under
| 42 U.S.C. § 1983. |

2] IV. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

2? This Court should grant defendants’ motion for summary judgment and

# | dismiss this matter with' prejudice. The right to vote by felony offenders has

z: never been part of our nation’s legal tradition. This Court should not transform
SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY T G
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| plaintiffs from disenfranchised felons into voters because of this action. The
| record fails to support Plaintiffs’ contention that they have been denied the vote
| based on race. Plaintiffs fail to demonstrate that they have the right to vote which
| is subject to the protections of the Voting Rights Act. Plaintiffs have all been
convicted under valid judgments and sentences in Washington State; the superior

Plaintiffs fail to demonstrate that Washington’s disenfranchisement law
| violates  their rights under the Voting Rights Act. Washington’s
disenfranchisement law is neutral on its face. An offender is disenfranchised
| when the judgment and sentence is entered. The offender may register to vote
after he has completed the requirements of his or her judgment and sentence and
| the superior court has entered a certificate of discharge. Despite plaintiffs’
allegations of disproportionality of conviction of African American, Hispanic, or
| Native American offenders, the alleged disproportionality is not relevant to any
of plaintiffs’ claims in this matter and should be excluded. Furthermore,
| Washington’s rich history of promoting voting rights belies plaintiffs’ claims that
| the totality of the circumstances warrants the return of their voting rights by this -

V. ARGUMENT

i A. This Court Lacks Subject Matter Jurisdiction Because Plaintiffs Seek
| This Court’s Review of the State Judgments and Sentences That
Caused Their Disenfranchisement Under Washington Law.

| “Where federal relief can only be predicated on a conviction that the state
! court was wrong, it is difficult to conceive the federal proceeding as, in
 substance, anything other than a prohibited appeal of the state court judgment.”
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| Pennzoil Co. v. Texaco, Inc., 481 U.S. 1, 25 (1987) (Marshall, J., concurring).
2 Here Plaintiffs contend without evidence their state Judgments and sentences
3 \ were wrong because they were based on race.

The federal courts have established the Rook -Feldman doctrine, named
after two U.S. Supreme Court cases decided 60 years apaxt, which precludes a
federal court from entertaining and reviewing claims adjudicated in state courts
[ or to evaluate any constitutional claims that are inextricably intertwined with the

| 460 U.S. 462, 482 (1983); Rooker v. Fidelity Trust Co., 263 U.S. 413, 416
(1923).2 | |
Rooker-Feldman is theoretically derived from 28 U.S.C. § 1257 which

| inextricably intertwined in the state court judgment. Feldman, 460 U.S. at 483 .
‘ 16, 103 S.Ct. at 1316 n. 16 In order to determine whether a claim is inextricably

? The United States Supreme Court declined to apply Rooker-Feldman to a
| Voting Rights Act claim brought by the United States where Defendants’

24 { the United States was not a party. The Supreme Court did not hold, however,

25 ‘ that the Voting Rights Act was not subject to Rooker-Feldman. See Johnson v.
26 | DeGrandy, 512 U.S. 997, 1005-06 (1994),
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SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY O B e e sion

JUDGMENT Olympia, WA 98504-0116
) (360) 586-1445




o

o
L=

1 |
12 |
13 |

D 00 ~ v W o8

Case 2:96-cv-0007_6-F.uW Document 128 * Page 8 of/.Q‘ Filed 08/01/2000

| decision or void its ruling. Bechtold v. City of Rosemount, 104 F.3d 1062, 1065
(8™ Cir. 1997).

The Ninth Circuit applied the Roo er-FelM doctrine in an analogous
| case in Hucke v. Oregon, 992 F.2d 950 (9" Cir. 1993), by refusing to consider a
} bankruptcy petitioner’s arguments that the revocation of his probation violated
the Bankruptcy Code and Oregon law. Hucke was a bankruptcy petitioner who
| was also under a judgment and sentence for rape. The judgment and sentence
| was entered following plea where the court required Hucke to pay a $20,000
| compensatory fine to the victim, retaining jurisdiction to impose the thirty-six
| | month suspended sentence. Instead of making any payments as ordered by the

14 | Hucke,

15
16 |
17 |
18 |
19 |

20
21

22
23 |

24

25 |
26 |

because: “(1) Hucke had no monetary obligation under the new judgment, and
altematlvely, (2) the resentencmg was a proper effort on the part of Judge Haas to
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| United States is the only federal court authorized to consider appeals of state
| court decisions, and then only on federal issues.”).
The federal courts have clearly applied the principles of Rooker-Feldman

| In Young, a decedent’s estate alleged due process (improper notice and
| burden of proof during the proceeding) violations against government officials
based on the defendants’ involvement in state competency proceedings. The
Seventh Circuit affirmed the dismissal of the due process claim under Rooker -
Feldman, reasoning as follows:

Young [the attorney for decedent’s estate ! tate] would suggest that his
suit is neither the appeal of, nor a colla attack upon, the earlier
incompetency proc:eedmghe But attackm the effects of that
udgment is exactl what he is doing. W ’s [the decedent’s]

injury resulted ﬁ'o the the state court Judgment of incompetency
and not from the aﬂ:%ed demal of due process. Had he prevailed in
the May 8 hearing was dec ared incompetent and a
guardian desplte the all ed due process errors, he
would have had no injury and no constitutional claim to bring before
the district court.

1. at 1231. |
‘ The court in Young noted that the decedent had options in response to the
| judgment, including a motion to vacate the judgment an appeal. Id. at 1231-32.

In Dale v. Moore, 121 F.3d 624 (11™ Cir. 1997), the court rejected a -

' challenge by a successful Florida bar applicant that the Florida Bar Board of

DEFENDANTS’ MEMORANDUM IN 9 | ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY PO Box 40116
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[

| Examiners “discriminated against by hindering or precluding his admission to the
| Florida Bar on account of an alleged disability.” Dale, 121 F.3d at 625.
Therefore he alleged his rights were violated under the Americans with
| Disabilities Act. The Eleventh Circuit affirmed the district court’s order of
| dismissal, reasoning that the claim was inextricably intertwined in the bar
' application process, a state court decision, because “[r]esolution of Dale’s ADA
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| jurisdiction that overrides the application of the Rooker-Feldman doctrine.” Id.
at 627-28 (and cases cited therein).

| This Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction under the Rooker-Felgm_;an
| doctrine. Plaintiffs allege they have been denied the right to vote based on their
race. See, e.g, Fourth Amended Compl. §15. In response to Defendants’
| dismissal motion, this Court dismissed Plaintiffs’ allegations of vote dilution
i under the Voting Rights Act. Farrakhan, 987 F.Supp. at 1313. However, this
| Court allowed Plaintiffs to proceed on the theory that, as African Americans,
: Hispanics, or Native Americans, they are more likely to be prosecuted, convicted,

and disenfranchised than if they were white. Id., at 1312, 1313. Consequently,
the Fourth Amended Complaint presents only vote denial claims, not vote

Nl—-lhﬂl—tv—ll—lh—ﬁp—l

\ dilution claims.

' Plaintiffs’ voting rights claims in this Court are inextricably intertwined
with their state court proceedings that culminated in their judgments and
sentences. Wash. Const. Art. VI, §3. Plaintiffs’ allegations are clearly based on

[\ I S T
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| the premise that their convictions were wrong; they seek to invalidate their

‘ allegations or studies that the Washington court system is biased against African
1 Americans, Hlspamcs and Native Americans. See Fourth Amended Compl. §

l 16-22. See Fourth Amended Compl. 1Y 15, 30, 32, 35.
|
|

‘ Plaintiffs also extend their challenge in this Court to 'post-judgment
| proceedings they have never brought in state court. Washington superior courts
i retain jurisdiction over criminal proceedings to enter certificates of discharge |
| when the offender has completed the requirements of his sentence, including
legal financial obligations. Plaintiffs allege that state court judgments should be
| invalidated in a more automatic fashion to clear the way for Plaintiffs to vote.
| They ailegc the superior court should grant certificates of ‘discharge without
" requu'mg the full payment of legal financial obligations. See Fourth Amended
Compl. Y 22-28, 34, 35, 37. Clearly, their allegations are based on the premise
{ that the continued life of the state court judgments and the continued absence ofa
| certificate of discharge is wrongful.

| The Voting Rights Act, however, contains no explicit authonty that allows
the federal court to review state court judgments. Like the Americans With
| Disabilities Act or the Civil Rights Act, the Voting Rights Act “does not have an
independent source of federal court jurisdiction that overrides the application of
| the Rooker-Feldman doctrine.” Dale v. Moore, 121 F.3d 624, 627-28 (11" Cir.
| 1997). Therefore, this Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction. |

|B.  Plaintiffs Are Barred Under Res Judicats And Collateral Estoppel

25
Principles.
26
DEFENDANTS’ MEMORANDUM IN 1 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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Res judicata not only bars claims which were litigated but also those
claims which should have been but were not litigated in the prior action:

)

Claim preclusion refers to the effect of a Judgment in foreclosing
litigation of a matter that never has been litigated, because of a
determination that it should have been advanced in an earlier suit.
Migra v. Warren City School Dist. Bd. Of Ed., 465 U.S. 75, 77 n.1 (1984).
The Ninth Circuit has recently reiterated that “Claim preclusion refers to -
| the effect of a judgmént in foreclosing litigation of a matter that never has been
| litigated, because of a determination that it should have been advanced in an
earlier suit.” Feminist Women s Health Center v. Codlsp_otl, 63 F.3d 863, 867
| (9th Cir. 1995).
Congress has authorized the federal courts to give the same "full faith and
| credJ " to judicial proceedings of the states "as they have by law or usage in the
| courts of such State, Territory or Possession from which they are taken." 28 U.S.C.
§ 1738 (1982). The Supreme Court has interpreted this provision to mean that

| federal courts must give such preclusive effect to state judgments as would the

(- - - R T - A ¥ T T > B
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‘ state courts. See ee, e.g., Marrese v. American Acad. of Orthopaedic Surgeons, 470

; U.S. 373, 380-81 (1985). So long as a party against whom preclusion is urged has
| had a full and fair opportunity to litigate his claims, 28 U.S.C.§ 1738 requires

i‘ federal courts to give the same preclusive effect to state court judgments that
| those judgments would be given in the courts of the state from which the

| | judgment emerged. Kremer v. Chemical Construction Cg:g ., 456 U.S. 461 481-
22 i
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26 | action involving the same subject matter:
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It is now established that where the federal constitutional claim is

n the sameas wrong as was the subject of a state
aecfil:rxall and where the es are the same, res judicata will bar the
constitutional ¢ whether it was asserted in state court or

no for the reason that state judgment on the merits serves not only
eryclmmthatwasreassertedmstatecourtbutalsoto
gaclude the assertwn of every legal theory or ground for recovery
been raised in support of the granting of the desu'ed
- relief. Appellant is not permitted to fragment a single cause of
action and to litigate piecemeal the issues which cou have been
resolved in one actlon

| Scoggin v. Schrunk, 522 F.2d 436, 437 (9" Cir. 1975), cert. denied 423 U.S.
1066 (1976). See also Sanchez v. City of Santa Ana, 936 F.2d 1027, 1035 (9"
Cir 1990), cert. denied, 502 U.S. 957 (1991) (in accord, pi'ecluding plaintiﬁ‘ from

"Collateral estoppel, or issue preclusion, prevents the relitigation of ali
| issues of fact or law that were actually litigated and necessarily decided in a prior

: proceeding.” Robi v. Five Platters, Inc., 838 F.2d 318, 322 (9th Cir.1988). In

| Parklane Hosiery Co., Inc. v. Shore, 439 U.S. 322, 326 (1979), the Supreme
\ Court explained the distinction between res judicata and collateral estoppel as
follows:

Under the doctrine of res judicata, a j ent on the merits in a

prior suit bars a second suit mvolvalg% parties or their
privies based on the same cause of action. Under the doctrme of
collateral estoppel, on the other 'hand, the second action is upon a
different cause of action and the judgment in the prior suit prec udes

relitigation of issues actuall 11tlgated and necessary to the outcome
of thg%lrst action y

The United States Supreme Court applied res judicata and collateral
| estoppel principles in rejecting a civil rights challenge to a conviction that had

| not been invalidated in Heck v. Humphrey, 512 U.S. 477 (1994). In Heck, the

DEFENDANTS’ MEMORANDUM IN 13 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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| plaintiff alleged that his conviction and 15-year sentence for voluntary
| manslaughter for the killing of his wife violated his civil rights. Heck brought
| the action in federal district court while his appeal was pending. The Supreme

7| : A claim of damages beanng that relationship to a conviction or a
| sentence that not so inv is not co e un
has been alidated 1 der
8 | 311983 Thus, when a state prisoner seeks damages in a §1983 suit,
! e district court must consic whether aj ent in favor of of the
9 plaintiff would necessarily the invalidity of his conviction or
| sentence; if it would, the co: ﬂf aint must be dismissed unless th
10 § laintiff can demonsu'ate that the conviction or sentence has
| geen invalidated. But if the district court determines that the
11 | plaintiff’s action, even if successﬁll will not demonstrate the
invalidity of any outstandm% t against the plaintiff,
12 | the action must be allowed proceecﬂ in the abseénce of some other
3 | bar to the suit.

| 1d. (emphasis in original) (footnotes omitted).?

In Frank v. Mangum, 237 U.S. 309, 333-334 (1915), the Supreme Coun, in
afﬂrmmgdemalofapetltlonforawntofhabeascorpus, said in part: "It is a
: fundamental principle of jurisprudence, arising from the very nature of courts of
| justice and objects for which they are established, that a question of fact or of law
distinctly put in issue and directly determined by a court of competent jurisdiction
cannotaﬁerwardsbeflisput_edbeﬂneenﬂle same parties . . . . The principle is as

| last sentence was qtioted with approval in Emich Motors v. General Motors, 340

3 The Court in Heck cited its holding in Rooker and other cases to
| exemplify that the “Court-has long expressed similar concerns for finality and
consistency and has generally declined to. expand opportunities for collateral
| attack. .. .” Heck, 512 U.S. at 485-86.

DEFENDANTS' MEMORANDUM IN 14 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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| U.S. 558, 568 (1951), where it was held that a "prior criminal conviction may work
‘ an estoppel in favor of the Government in a subsequent civil proceeding”.

| Here, the principles of res judicata, collateral estoppel, and the Supreme
| Court’s holding in Heck preclude Plaintiffs’ claims. Plaintiffs’ allegations are

[

| clearly based on the premise that their convictions were wrong; they seek to
invalidate the effect of their judgment through this action.” See Fourth Amended
Compi. § IX, X. Plaintiffs repeatedly allege that their convictions (the only thing
\ causing their disenfranchisement) were based upon their race. See Fourth
| Amended Compl. 9 15, 30, 32, 35. To the contrary, their convictions and hence
their respective disenfranchisements were caused by the entry of their judgments
and sentences. Plaintiffs had the panoply of rights available to them under the
| Sixth Amendment, including trial, the requirement of proof beyond a reasonable
| doubt, appeal, collateral review, and habeas coprus review. Each plaintiff has
been convicted of one or more felonies. Furthermore, none of Plaintiffs’ criminal
prbcedural records indicate that any plaintiff challenged his conviction on appeal

(Y- - S - AU T - B
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| or in collateral review based on allegations of racial discrimination.

i Plaintiffs also further allege the supenor court should grant certificates of
dlscharge without requiring the full payment of legal financial obligations. See
! Fourth Amended Compl. 19 22-28, 34, 35, 37. This component of their claim is
| atso barred under Heck, 512 U.S. at 486-87 (“extending its holding to “allegedly
' unconstitutional conviction or 1mpnsonment, or for other harm caused by actions

BOR e = e
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22 || whose unlawfulness would render a conviction or sentence invalid .. )

23 | (emphasis added)

24 { C. Plaintiffs Do Not Retain The Right To Vote Because They Are
= Convicted Felons Whose l?h ve Been Lost By Their Valid

25 | Felony Convictions In State Court.

26 |
DEFENDANTS® MEMORANDUM IN 15 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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"Lawful incarceration brings about the necessary withdrawal or limitation
 of many privileges and rights, a retraction justified by the considerations
| underlying our penal system.” Sandin v. Conner, 515 U.S. 472, 485 (1995)
| (quoting M&Mﬂ'ﬂw&% 433 U.S. 119, 125
| (1977), quoting Price v. Johnston, 334 U.S. 266, 285 (1948)(internal quotations
omitted)). As recognized by this Court in the order of service for this matter, the
Constitution permits states to disenfranchise persons convicted of "participation
in rebellion, or other crimes." U.S. Const., Amend XIV. Accordingly, a state
| may disenfranchise convicted felons. Richardson v. Ramirez, 418 U.S. 24, 55-56
| (1974); Franklin v. Murphy, 745 F.2d 1221, 1231 (9th Cir. 1984).

‘ Plaintiffs bring these claims under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1971 and 1973. 42 U.S.C.
| §1971 protects the right to vote of “[a]ll citizens who are otherwise qualified by
| 1aw to vote.” Id. 42 U.S.C. §1973(a) protects against “denial or abridgment of
| the right of any citizen of the United. States to vote on account of race or color.”
11d. 42 U.S.C. §1973(b), which provides for a violation of subsection (a) based
| on the totality of the circumstances, protects “members of a class of citizens
protected by subsection (a).” Id. The language of these statutes protects voting
rights. Neither of these statutes aid an individual who lacks the underlying right
' to vote.

| Throughout our country’s hlstory, felon disenfranchisement has been the
| norm, states allowing felons to vote have been the exception. Clearly, our
country’s legal traditions have not encompassed the right of felons to vote. See
| Haymelin v. Michigan, 501 U.S. 957, 982-83 (1991) (quoting Chief Justice
Spencer from Barker v. People, 20 Johns. *459 (NY Sup. Ct. 1823) (“’The
| disenfranchisement of a citizen,” he said, ‘is not an unusual punishment; it was
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i the consetiuence- of treason, and of infamous crimes, and it was altogether
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| discretionary in the legislature to éxtend that punishment to other offenses.”);
| see also, Romer v. Evans, 517 U.S. 620, 634 (1996) (the United States Supreme
Court referred to its holding in Richardson, allowing states to disenfranchise
| felons, as "unexceptionable.")(citing Davis v. Beason, 133 U.S. 333 (1890)).
More recently courts have continued to reject all claims that voting rights extend
| to convicted felons. Jones v. Edgar, 3 F.Supp. 2d 979, 980 (C.D. Ill 1998) ("This
‘ court finds no decision from any court holding that the disenfranchisement of
| felons is invalid") See also Fischer v. Govemor, 749 A 2d. 321 (New Hamp.
5.Ct. 2000). |

 The Second Circuit discussed the ratlonale behind the state's authonty to
| disenfranchise:

W 0 ~ N th W N
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The early exclusion of felons from the elective franchise by many
states could well have rested on Locke's concept, so influential at the
time, that by entering into society every man "authorizes the society,
or which is all one, the legislature thereof, to make laws for him as the
public good of the society shall require, to the execution whereof his
own assistance (as to his own decrees) is due." A man who breaks the
law he has authorized his agent to make for his own governance could
fairly have been thought to have abandoned the right to participate in
further administering the compact. On a theoretical plane, it can
scarcely be deemed unreasonable for a state to decide that perpetrators
of serious crimes shall not take part in electing the legislators who
make the laws, the executives who enforce these, the prosecutors who
must try them for further violations, or the judges who are to consider
their cases. This is especially so when account is taken of the heavy
incidence of recidivism and the heavy prevalence of organized crime.

(%] [ e L o e

| Green v. Board of Elections of City of New York, 380 F.2d 445, 451 (2d Cir.

| 1967), cert. denied, 389 U.S. 1048 (1968). See also Fischer, 749 A 2d. at 329-30.
The United States Supreme Court upheld a California law that
| disenfranchised convicted felons in Rlcl_amn v. Ramirez, 418 U.S. 24 (1974).
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| In that case, the Supreme Court reviewed the law of the state of California which
| precluded felons from voting. In Richardson, the three plaintiffs had completed
{ the service of their respective sentences and paroles. Afier they were denied
| registration for voting, they brought a petition for writ of mandamus under
| Califonia law to compel their county officials to allow them to register.
| Richardson, 418 U.S. at 26. The California Constitution provided that " "[1]Jaws |
| shall be made' to exclude from voting persons convicted of bribery, perjury,
| forgery, malfeasance in office, 'or other high crimes.' " Id (citing Cal. Const. Art.
| XX, §11). The California Supreme Court held that, as applied to ex-felons whose
| terms of incarceration and parole had expired, the California Constitution and the
| Elections Code violated the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth
Amendment. Id. at 27.

_ Upon writ of certiorari, the Supreme Court disagreed and reversed. The |
| | Court settled any issue that states could permissibly disenfranchise convicted
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felons, even after they completed the requirements of their judgment and
| sentence. After reviewing extensively several state disenfranchisement statutes
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| and their legislative histories, and the language and history of Section 2 of the
| Fourteenth Amendment, the Richardson court concluded that Section 2 of the
Fourteenth Amendment expressly allows states to deny the elective franchise to
| convicted felons, including those who have completed their sentence and parole.
| Richardson, 418 U.S. at 53-56. |

‘In 1985, the United State Supreme Court decided Hunter v. Un derwood,
| 47 1 U.S. 222 (1985). In Hunter, the Court reviewed claims by mdlwduals who
| were not allowed to register to vote because they convicted of presenting
| worthless checks, considered a misdemeanor in Alabama. 471 U.S. at 223-24.
| The Supreme Court conducted a thorough review of the legislative history behind
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| the Alabama provisions at issue. This included recorded statements by White
| legislators that it was their intention to purposefully disenfranchise Blacks by
these laws. ' Id. at 226-31. The Court also noted that under Alabama
| disenfranchisement statutes, "Blacks are by even most modest estimates at least
| 1.7 times as likely as Whites to suffer disenfranchisement” under the specific
. Alabama law at issue. Id. at 227. In response, the state of Alabama admitted
| discriminatory intent, but only to the extent that the statute sought to
disenfranchise poor Whites, as well as poor Blacks. Id at 230-31.

‘ The Supreme Court struck down the Alabama statute on equal protection
grounds, not under the Voting Rights Act. In doing so, the Court re-affirmed its
| holding in Richardson that convicted felons do not have the right to vote.
However, the Court concluded that Section 2 of the Fourteénth Amendment did
not allow states to purposefully discriminate against Blacks when enacting its
| disenfranchisement statute. |

| Here, Plaintiffs allege that under the Voting Rights Act, they have been
| denied the right to vote based on their race. Defendants disagree. Plaintiffs do
| not have the right to vote because they are convicted felons. Under the Supreme
' Court’s holding in Richardson and under Washington law, they are not
| “otherwise qualified” under §1971. They are not denied the right to vote based
| on race under §1973. There is no dispute that all plaintiffs are disenfranchised
because of their felony convictions. The record fails to support their contention

]
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that their convictions were based on race. Furthermore, their valid conviction
precludes them from arguing their convictions were based on race. There is no
| dispute that Washington’s disenfranchisement law is constitutional in light of the
| Supreme Court’s decision in Hunter; this Court has dismissed Plaintiffs’ equal
| protection and all of Plaintiffs’ other constitutional claims. Before Plaintiffs may
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| bring this action under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1971 or 1973, they must have the underlying
 right to vote. Plaintiffs do not because they are convicted felons who are
| disenfranchised under a lawful statute.
D. Plaintiffs Fail To Demonstrate They Were Denied The nght To Vote
. Based On _Their Race use The Record In This Case Does Not
~ Warrant The Reversal Of Washington Law By Judicial Fut.

1. Introduction.
The Voting Rights Act of 1965 was "designed primarily to enforce the

15th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States and . . . also designed to
| enforce the 14th amendment and article I, section 4." House Report (Judiciary
| Committee) N. 439, 89th Cong., 1st Sess. (June 1, 1965) ("1965 House Report"),
reprinted in 1965 U.S. Code Cong. 7 Admin News 2437 et seq. This Act was
designed to address various exclusionary practices (e.g., literacy tests) in certain
| regions of the nation (referred to as covered juridictions) that were designed to
preveilf Blacks from voting. The 1965 Act referred to such tests or devices as:

uirement that a n as a uisite for vo! or
stri%on for voting (1) dem te the ability to read, tmg

d or in any matter, ( ) demonstrate any catlonai
achevement or his owledge of any particular subject, tE) possess
good moral character, or (4) prove hlS qualifications by the voucher

of registered voters or members of any other class.

{ 42 U.S.C. § 1973b[c).
As this Court observed in its decision on Defendants’ motion for dismissal,
“Congress created the VRA to put an end to the {several southern] states’

‘unremitting and ingenious defiance of the Coﬁstitution.”’ Farrakhan, 987 F.
| Supp. at 1309 (quoting South Carolina v. Katzenbach, 383 U.S. 301, 309 (1966)).
~ Qutside covered areas, the 1965 Act barred application of tests or devices
that had "been used . . . for the purpose or with the effect of denying or abridging
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the righf of any citizen of the United States to vote on account of race or color, . .
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|." 42 US.C. § 71973a[b] (emphasis added). Despite Congress' broader use of

[oery

2| language to include situations where the "effect" was present, it was not the intent
3 || of Congress for the 1965 Act to apply to felony disenfranchisement, as evidenced
4 | in the 1965 Senate Report:
5 The third type of test or device covered is any reqmrement of good
i moral character. his definition |__l esuit 1n rOSCription
6 O1 e Irequent reduil L-in &Nt O o -
: an _applicant for voting g
7 sonviction of a felor al dis t applies where lack o
i g00d moral charac lS de m m terms of conviction of lesser
8 crimes.
9

| 1965 Senate Report, reprinted in 1965 U.S.C.C.AN,, p. 2562 (emphasis added).

| A similar exemption was described in the 1965 House Report. See 1965
House Report, reprinted in 1965 U.S. House Code. Cong. & Admin. News at
' 2457 (subsection 4[c}(3) "does not pmscﬁbé a requirement of a State or any

— et et
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political subdivision of a State that an applicant for voting or registration for
j voting be free of conviction of a felony or mental disability”). Similar statements
| were made on the floor of the Senste. See 111 Cong. Rec. 8366 (April 23, 1965)
| '(s_tatement of Sen. Joseph Tydings).

| Since the passage of the VRA, Congress has re-affirmed its approval of the
dlsenﬁ'anchlsement of felons in the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 by
speclﬁcally listing the conviction of a felony as one of a limited group of reasons

Justlfymg the cancellation of a voter's reglstratlon 42 US.C. §197ng-6(a)(3)

[ R & R Y e e s
B'—‘O\OW\IO\UI-P-W

enacted to remedy racial discrimination in voting. 42 U.S.C. §1973gg(a)(3)
| Congress amended the Voting Rights Act in 1982 to provide for the

following:

[ S S |
S W

an (a) No votmg quahﬁcatlh(:lll g;‘ prereqmslte tohvotmg or
S practice, or procedure s unposed or any
State or political subdmslon in & manner which resul applied o
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C or, or In coniravention o] the guarantees s

rth in se ' oftlustltle[addressingmembe%lgg;n

l minori grougs protected by the Act], as provi in
on (b) of

(b) A violation of subsection (a) of this section is estabhshed
1f on the totality of the circumstances, it is shown that the
s | to nommatlon or election i in the State or

cal processe
lmeal subdivision are not equal to partici on b
IS,nf?embers of a class of citizens WM y
section in that its members have ess O

members of the electorate to participate in the liti

to elect tatives of their choice. e extent to wh1c:h

members of a protected class have been elected to office in the State
: pohtlcal : subdstmn is one clrcumstance whmh may be

L =T - - B - U ¥ T N S -

| 2UsC. § 1973 (emphams added) |

| The 1982 amendments were designed to legislatively overturn the Supreme
Court's decision in City of Mobile v. Bolden, 446 U.S. 55 (1980) (requiring proof
of discriminatory intent as prima facie evidence). See Voting Rights Act
| Amendments of 1982, Senate report (Judiciary Committee), No. 97-417 (May
1982) ("1982 Senate Report"), pp. 2, 18-19, reprinted in 1982 U.S.C.CAN., pp.
| 179, 195-96. There is no indication in any record of legislative history that
| Congress intended that its 1982 amendments would be applied to incarcerated
| felons. See, e.g., 1982 Senate Report at 27, reprinted in 1982 US.C.CAN, p.
| 204; Extension of the Voting Rights Act, Hearings before the Subcommittee on
| Civil and Constitutional Rights of the Committee on the Judiciary, House of
| Representatives, 97th Cong., 1st Sess. (May 6,7, 13, 19, 20, 27, 28, June 3, 5, 12,
| 16, 17, 18, 23, 24, 25, and July 13, 1981) (1981 House Hearings); Hearings
| Before the Subcommittee on the Constitution of the Committee of the Judiciary, -
| United States Senate, 97th Cong., 2d Sess. (January 27, 28, February 1, 2, 4, 11,
| 12,25, and March 1, 1982) (1982 Senate Hearings).
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The Senate Judiciary Committee Report that accompanied the 1982

i

2 || amendments to the VRA set forth the following non-exclusive factors that may
3 | be taken into account in determining whether a violation under Section 2 has
4 [ occurred: . | | |
5 | _ 1. ﬂjq extent of any history of official discrimination in the

: state or political subdivision that touched the right of the members of
6 i the minority group to register, to vote, or otherwise participate in the
;| democratic process; - _ :

| .. 2. the extent to which voting in the elections of the state or
8 | political subdivision is racially polarized;

9| | 3. the extent to which the state or political subdivision has

used unusually large election districts, majority vote requirements,

10 § anti single-shot provisions, or other voting practices or procedures

: that may enhance the opportunity for discrimination against the
11§ minority group;
12 | 4. if there is a candidate slating process, whether the
o members of the minority group have been denied ‘access to that
13 ] process;
14 | 5. the extent to which members of the minority group in the

| state or political subdivision bear the effects of discrimination in
15 § such areas as education, employment and health, which hinder their
6 ability to participate effectively in the political process;

| 6. whether political campaigns have been characterized by
17 | overt or subtle_raciglo appeals; [m extent to which members of

the minority group have been elected to public office in the

18 | jurisdiction; |

19 | Additional factors that in some cases haye had probative value as

20 j part of plaintiffs’ evidence to establish a violation are: .

- [7.] whether there is a significant lack of responsiveness on
21 the of elected officials to the particularized needs of the
” | mem of the minority group. :
N 8.] whether the policy underlying the state or political
23 § subdivgsigm’s use of such v%otin?qqaliﬁcation, prerequisite to voting,
) or standard, practice, or procedure is tenuous.
| Farrakhan, 987 F. Supp. At 1311 (quoting S. Rep. No. 97-417, 97" Cong., 2d
25 | - - .
| Sess.28-29 (1982), reprinted in 1982 U.S.C.C.A.N. (vol. 2) 177, 206-07).

26 : :
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In light of the Senate factors discuséed above, the record in this case fails

| record in this case belies any assertion by Plaintiffs that Washington’s
disenfranchisement law has had any mgmﬁcant nnpact on voting in the state as
discussed in the factors outlined above.

L~ T - - BN B - S ¥ ]

10 | The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals rejected a plamtlft’ s voting rights
11 | claim in Smith v. Salt River, 109 F. 3d 586 (9® Cir. 1997). In Salt River,
12 '
13 §
14
15 |
16 |
17 |
18 |
19

2 |
21
)
23
24
25

_ f Philadelphia Office of the City Comm’rs, 28 F.3d
306, 315 (3d Cir. 1994) (rejecting the contention that Pennsylvania’s voter-purge
| statute violated §2 simply because more minority voters than whites were
| inactive voters); Irby v. Virginia State Bd. of Elections, 889 F.2d 1352, 1358-59

| (4% Cir. 1989); v. Southwest Te ior College Dist., 964 F.2d 1542,
1 1556 (5™ Cir. 1992) (rejecting challenge to at-large voting system based

exclusively on a statistical difference between 'Hispa'nic and white voter turnout);

26 | Wesley v. Collins, 791 F.2d 1255, 1262 (6 Cir. 1986) (rejecting challenge to
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River, 109 F. 3d at 594-95. The court applied the seven Senate factors. Salt
| River, 109 F.3d at 595 (“These cases stand for the proposition that a bare

(L]

| statlstacal showing of disproportionate impact on a racial minority does not
| satisfy the § 2 ‘results’ inquiry.”).

Plaintiff’s theory that the Voting Rights Act is violated because of
 statistical disparity sits uncomfortably beside the federal court’s unwillingness to

| intervene in habeas corpus cases based on the same alleged disparity. The federal
| courts have repeatédly denied racial discrimination claims by minority
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mp, 481 U.S. 279 (1987). In McClesky, the Supreme Court held that
statistical evidence of racial disparities in imposition of the death penalty is
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the sentences in his or her case acted in a discriminatory manher, or that the state
| enacted or maintained the death penalty statute because of its racially
‘discriminatory effect. Id. A number of Ninth Circuit cases have followed
McClesky. See, e.g., Carriger v. Lewis, 971 F.2d 329, 334 (9th Cir. 1992), cert.
| denied, 507 U.S. 992, 113 S.Ct. 1600 (1993); Richmond v. Lewis, 948 F.2d
| 1473, 1490-91 (th Cir. 1992).

T Here, Plaintiffs assert racial bias; they allege their disenfranchisement is a
| product of a biased system in Washington State. Again, this argument fails

N N B ke o e
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Tennessee’s felon disenfranchisement law that rested primarily ohrthe statistical

[\
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| difference between minority and white felony-conviction rates).
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| because this Court lacks jurisdiction under the Voting Rights Act to review
| Plaintiffs judgments and sentences on these grounds. Even if this Court had such
| jurisdiction in this matter, Plaintiffs’ claim of bias would fail. Although a
| criminal defendant’s right of due process includes an unbiased judge, Haupt v.
| Dillard, 17 F.3d 285, 287 (9* Cir. 1994), review of such habeas claims has been

i

| Ford v. Kerby, 39 F.3d 1462, 1479-80 (10" Cir. 1994).
A Federal Court hea.nng a bias challenge in a habeas corpus proceedmg

O e 9t B W N
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" The federal courts in habeas cases have a.lso granted similar deference to

[—
L

the decision to prosecute ‘based on the following reasons:

In order to dispel the presumption that the prosecutor has not
viglated equal protection, a criminal defendant must present clear
evrdeme to the contrary . . . Judicial deference to the decisions of
those executive officers rests in part on an assessment of the relative
ceof%:secmorsandcouns Suchfactorsasthestrenﬁh

of 1 case, prosecution’s general deterrence value
Government’s enforcement pnontles, and the case’s relatlonsﬁlp to
the Government’s overall enforcement plan are not readily
, zmle to the kind of analysis the courts are c;)arlr_lﬁ’etent to

Y

e. It also stems from a concern pot to unneces: impair
performance of a core-executive constitutional function. o

U_mm&m;mm 517 U.S. 456, 465 (1996).
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| In Amnstrong, the United States Supreme Court considered whether
| criminal defendants could proceed upon criminal discovery under the theory that
| the prosecufors 'were racially selective in the cases they prosecuted. ~ The
| defendants argued that disparate numbers of prosecutions against Blacks for
| crack cocaine possession éntitled them to review prosecutor files to further
| develop their theory. An en banc panel of the Ninth Circuit held that the
| defendants could proceed to discovery upon this theory without evidence that the
| government failed to prosecute  others who were- similérly situated to the
| defendant. United States v. Armstrong, 48 F.3d 1508, 1516 (9th Cir. 1995) (en
| banc). The Supreme Court reversed, citing a majority rule among the circuit
courts that, "[t]o establish a discriminatory effect in a race case, the claimant
must show that similarly situated individuals of a . different race were not
| prosecuted.” Armstrong, 517 U.S. at 469 (citing e.g., United States v. Parham,
16 F.3d 844, 846-47 (8th Cir. 1994); United States v. Fares, 978 F2d 52, 59-60
! (24 Cir. 1992); C.E. Carison, Inc. v. S.E.C., 859 F.2d 1429, 1437-38 (10th Cir.
 1988)). | |
| Federal courts 'have upheld state disenfranchisement laws against
| challenges made under the Voting Rights Act. For example, the Sixth Cirouit
Court of Appeals held that disenfranchisement did not violate the VRA or equal
| protection in Wesley v. Collins, 791 F.2d 1255 (6th Cir. 1986). In Wesley, a
| convicted black felon and a public interest law project brought suit challenging
| Tennessee's disenfranchisement statute. The court rejected the VRA claim,

b
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| reasoning, in part, as follows:

It is well-settled, however, that a showing of disproportionate racial
impact alone does not establish a ggi violation of the Voting
Rights Act. . . . When the Tennessee law in issue is viewed in
the context of the totality of the circumstances,” it is & t that
the challenged legislation does not violate the Voting Rights Act. ..
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Moreover, the existence of other social and political factors
this case leads to the mesoagable conclusion that the
u%tlehghts Act was not violated:. Chief among those factors was
and compe onale for enactmg the
statute here m issue. It is sgu state may
constlmtlonallﬁlglsenﬁmchlse felons, and that the nght of felons to
vote is not Thus, the courts have consistentl tg
that states may, pursuant to Section 2 of the Fo
Amendment, msen&an chise persons convicted of " partlclpatlon in
rebellion, or other crimes.”

{ 1d. at 1262-63 (citations and footnotes omitted).

The court in Wesley also affirmed dismissal of plaintiffs' claim under the
Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments because "plaintiffs were unable to .present
 evidence that proved or inferred a discriminatory intent on the part of the
| Tennessee legislature.” Id. at 1262 (footnote omitted). | |

Defendants respectfully challenge this Court’s criticisms of the Court of
| Appeals’decision in Wesley. See Farrakhan, 987 F.Supp. at 1312-13. This Court
| criticized Wesley on two grounds: (1) Wesley was inconsistent with the Ninth
| Circuit’s decision in Dillenburg v. Kramer, 469 F.2d 1222 (9 Cir. 1972), which
| criticized the rationale behind \}oter disenfranchisement; and (2) Wesley held that
| plaintiffs’ misconduct prevents them from arguing discrimination based on race
i light of the Supreme Court’s decision in Hunter, Defendants disagree with
| these criticisms because the Supreme Court (2 years after Dillenburg) laid to rest
any questions about the state’s authority to disenfranchise convicted felons based
| solely on the express authority in Section 2 of the Fourteenth Amendment
| Defendants also disagree that Hunter trumps the decision in Wesley because
M was an equal protection case, not a voting rights case. Hunter does not
\ preclude states from disenfranchising convicted felons; Hunter affords convicted
| felons no additional rights in that regard. Hunter precludes states like Alabama
from enacting disenfranchisement laws that are ta‘rgetedA against African

[y
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| Americans or other groups under the Equal Protection CIause. Here, this Court
| has already resolved this issue by dismissing Plaintiffs’ claims under Hunter and
| the Equal Protection Clause. Farrakhan, 987 F.Supp. at 1313-14.

More recent decisions add weight to the courts reasoning in Wesley. The

b

| Ninth.  Circuit relied upon Wesley for the proposition that statistical
w dlspropomonahty is insufficient to support a voting rights claim. Salt River, 109
j F.3d. at 594-95. The court in Jones relied upon Wesley for its conclusion that
{there is no connection between felon disenfranchisement and racial
| discrimination. Jones, 3 F.Supp. 2d. at 981. The New Hampshire Supreme Court
i also concluded that felon disenfranchisement serves a reasonble
i nondlscnmmatory purpose. Fischer, 749 A. 2d. at 329-30.

Hefe,_even if they maintained voting rights subject to the protections of the
| Voting Rights Act, Plaintiffs fail to demonstrate viable claims urider 42 U.S.C. §§
1971, 1973. Under the totality of the circumstances, they are not denied the right
| to-vote based on race under either statute. The Washington law applies to all
felons; it is color blind. There is no support in the record for any argument by
Plaintiffs that the statute was enacted for racially discriminatory purposes, as in
| Hunter. There is no support in the record for any argument by Plaintiffs that they .
have been denied the right to vote based on race.

_ Plaintiff’s allegations of disproportionality of Hispanic, African American,
and Native American offenders sentenced to Washington’s correctional system
| are insufficient. This Court has dismissed PlaintifPs claim of vote dilution.
| Plaintiffs fail to preseht any evidence demonétrating that they were denied the
right to vote based on their race. All plaintiffs were disenfranchised following
the entry of valid judgments and sentences, despite their allegations they were
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.denied the vote based on race. Exhibits 1-36, passim. Therefore, plaintiffs’

| claims of statistical bias have no relevance to their claims in this matter.’

3.
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Even if Plaintiffs’ claims under the Voting Rights Act were not barred and

| were properly before the Court, their claims would also fail in light of the Senate
| factors. The record in this case fails to demonstrate a history within the State of
| Washington of racial discrimination in voting. Neither Washington State nor any

3 An effect on political opportunity must be proven by actual evidence; it

| cannot merely be surmised from apparently disproportional statistics. Statistical
| evidence regarding the criminal justice system does not, by itself, establish that
| members of minority groups “have less opportunity than other members of the
| electorate to participate in the political process to elect representatives of their
| choice.” 42 USC § 1973(b). In order to establish that nexus, Plaintiffs must
demonstrate an actual effect on election resillts. The record is devoid of such
| evidence. According to at least one scholarly report, changing the pool of
| registered voters is unlikely in itself to change the results of elections. R.
| Wolfinger and S. Rosenstone, Who Votes? 80-88 (1980) As both Secretary
' Munro and Representative Al Swift noted in a Congressional hearing on the
| National Voter Registration Act in 1993, those with a partisan orientation often
.a_s.'sun.le that any change in voter registration processes was designed to harm the_ir

cause. Exhibit 58, Attachment A at 20-21 (testimony Qf Secretary Munro). Such

| perceptions are no substitute for actual evidence that electoral opportunity has

| been diminished on the basis of race.
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| of its political subdivisions have ever been a “covered jurisdiction™ under the
Voting Rights Act. To the contrary, the State’s leadership in voter accessibility
| has been stellar, as evidenced by the state’s 1970 voting rights review and the
; state’s more recent promotion of motor voter procedures. The record does not
demonstrate efforts within this State to use unusually large voter districts’ or
| other tactics to enhance opportdnities for discrimination against minority groups.
For example, Washington law does not include a majority vote requirement that

' requires a run-off election if the winner receives less than 50 percent of the vote.
| See RCW 29.27.100. The record does not demonstrate denial of African
Americans, Native Americans, or Hispanics to a candidate —slating process. |

LT~ TN - - TS R - SRV T T 7 B
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| Washington State uses an open primary system, followed by a general election.
| See RCW 29.15.020; and .030. The record does not demonstrate that African
| Americans, Native Americans, or Hispanics are hindered in their ability to
: participate in the electoral process because of discrimination in employment,
education, and health. The record does not demonstrate that past elections have
| been characterized by overt or subtle racial appeals. The record does not
| demonstrate a lack of responsiveness by Washington officials to the needs of
| minority groups. See e.g., Exhibits 58, 59, 60 (Declarations of Munro, Whitir_ng,
| and Cochran). | | o

| Washington’s disenfranchisement laws date back to territorial days. See
| Territorial Law of 1866 (Rem. &Bal. Code, §4755). Washington’s laws predate

. 6 See 42 U.S.C. §1973b(b) (referring to geographical areas that have used
| votmg procedures or other devices found by the Attorney General to deny

- pek — ) ok — — -

26 | 7 See RCW 44.07C (describing voter districts by census blocks).
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historical rooted discrimination.") There is no record that these laws have been
| part of some master plan on the part of Washington officials to keep African
| Americans, Native Amencans, or Hispanics from voting, as identified by the

o 0 3 N B W N
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been a permissible exercise of state power under Section 2 of the Fourteenth
| Amendment, validated by the Supreme Court in Richardson, and further re-
| affirmed by Congress under the National Voter Registration Act. See 42 U.S.C.
| § 1973 gg-6(a)(3). o

| The record in this case demonstrates Washington’s progressive historical
record in the voting arena; Washington has not been hostile territory to members
| of Ihinoﬁty_ groups. As Dr. Taylor testifies, Washington passed a civil rights

—
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| measure restricting discrimination in public places as early as 1890. The
| Washington territory extended suffrage to Black voters in 1870. Washington has
| not enacted Jim Crow laws or other forms of de jure segregation. African-
| American political candidates have found success in Washington State which
| began with William Owens Bush’s election to the Legislature in 1890, spanning
to the well-supported statewide political campaigns by Ron Sims for the Senate
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| in 1994 and by Norm Rice for the Governor’s Office in 1996.° Exhibit 47,
| Declartion of Taylor.

Washington’s history in making the vote accessible to all of its citizens has
| been well documented, particularly in the last 30 years. In 1970, Secretary of
State Ludlow Kramer chaired a panel to review and make recommendations for
| changes on state voting practices, including practices that would open up
| participation by members of minority groups. These included centralization of

)

t voting records at the county level, removal of obsolete statutory language
] regarding literacy tests, computerizing voting records, and removal of improper
| language regarding Native Americans from the State Constlmtlon See Exhzbzt
{ 59, Whiting Declaration. Smce 1970, the State expanded voter accessibility by
makmg voting registration available in state precincts and state offices.

Sincé 1981, Secretary of State Ralph Munro has made voter accessibility a
: top priority. In 1984, voter registration was expanded to more state offices.
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% Ron Sims is currently the King County Executive. Norm Rice was
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prominent elective or prominent positions in Washington State.  These
mdw:duals mclude Gary Locke, the nation’s first Asian Governor. Charles Z.
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Representauve John Lovick is an African-American State Representatlve elected
| from a district where African-Americans comprise 1.2 percent of the population.
| See Exhibit 50, Supplemental Declaration of Bob Terwilliger.
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| Upon Mr. Munro’s recommendation, Washington passed a motor law in 1990,

§ five years before fedei'al motor legislation took effect, allowing for voter

| reglstratlon at the Department of Motor Vehicles. With the assistance of

| before Congress and urged the passing of the National Voter Registration Act.
i The measure called for registration at motor vehicle locations, registration by
| mail (something already done in Washington), and registration through certain
| state agencles Mr. Munro testifies that one of his reasons for supporting the

\OOO'-JO\UIILWM

passage of NVRA “is to reach out to members of under represented groups in

[en—ry
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this society and encourage them to participate in the democratic process.”

| Exhibir 58, Munro Declaration. During Mr. Munro's tenure, Washington has
| expanded absentee ballot availability and voting by mail. Secretary Munro has
souglit to increase accessibility of polling places to the handicapﬁed. Washington
| State provides the voter registration materials available in several different

[ e
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| languages. The State Voters’ Pamphiet is available in Spanish, Chinese, Braille,
| and cassette tape. Finally; Secretary Munro’s administration has included a
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Washington’s responsiveness as a state is further evidenced by the State’s
? implementatibn of the Washington State Minority and Justice Commission,
| which began in 1990, was renewed in 1995, and has been approved again for five
\ more years this year. The Commission’s purpose is to determine whether bias

o
E -

25 | exists in the state of Washington, taking steps to address it, and taking steps to

26 | prevent bias where it does not exist. See Exhibit 55, 1998 Report, Minority and
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statewide information. It is limited in theory to vote denial; Plaintiffs’ vote
[ dilution claim has been dismissed. Although Plaintiffs allege that felony
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| Justice: Commission.  The Commission has undertaken its work by
commlssmnmg studies, mokmg the results of the studies available to the legal

prov:dmg training and education to court personnel regarding matters pertaining
lto minority groups. See Exhibit 55, 1998 Report, Minority and Justice
| Commission; and Exhibit 63, Declarstion of Judge Kenneth Kato.

The Commission directed that the study on bail practices in King County
| occur. The study was completed by Dr. George Bridges in 1997. See Exhibit 56,
| Report by Dr. Bridges. Implementation of corrective action continues with-
| ongoing education in light of the study and revision of Wash, Crim. Rule (CrR)
J 3.2(b), which is ongoing. See Exhibit 63, Declaration of Kato. Another study
| under the Commission included review of felony drug case processing in ng,
| Pierce, and Yakima Counties. - See Exhibit 57, Final Report, December 1999,

Plaintiffs’ claim under the Voting Rights Act is general, based on

conviction and subsequent disenfranchisement amongst African Americans,
Native Americans, and Hispanics are occurring in disproportionate numbers, this
contention does not demonstrate that Plaintiffs were denied the vote based on
| race. In addition, Defendants are not aware of data demonstrating that felon

dxsenﬁ-anchlsement dramatlcally changes the landscape of registered voters. For

example county auditors report that from a two-month penod in 1999, felony
| judgments and sentences resulted in cancellation of voter registrations of only 20
| percent of the convictions. Exhibits 11, 42, 43, 44, 45, and 46 (Declarations of
Bruce Cochran, Flynn, Reed, Terwilliger, and Varney) The discovery returned
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| by Plaintiffs demonstrates that Plaintiffs did not participate in the democratic
process. Plaintiffs were either not registered in Washington or they did not vote.
| Exhibits 18, 22, 30, and 40 (Plaintiffs’ Interrogatory Answers). Plaintiffs have
| provided no data showing any specifi impacts resulting from felon
| disenfranchisement apart from statistics of statewide applicability. The studies
{ do not extend to particular districts or areas. Plaintiffs themselves were
| convicted in different counties throughout the State. The studies discussed in this
| case do not demonstrate a benefit gained by any candidate or candidates as a
| result of disenfranchisement. The studies themselves do not even extend to
| discussion of disenfranchisement, except for the study conducted by Marc Mauer,
which is based on general statewide numbers. | |

There is no dispute in this case that the discussion of relationship between
| dlsenﬁ'anchlsement and its relatlonshlp to disproportionality amongst convicted
felons is a novel topic for discussion or study. Although the Supreme Court
_ recognized the existence of such studies in relation to capital punishment cases in
| McClesky, the Court recognized the limited values of such studies because of the
| many variables associated with any case in which an accused is charged, tried,
i convicted, and sentenced. Here, Plaintiffs, who allege their convictions are based
‘ on race, present nothing from their respective criminal records to support their
| contentions. In addition, they make no connection between their cases and the
statistical data regarding disproportionality, except to pi'esent it as general
| evidence or background information regarding our culture. Defendants’ other
| arguments aside, this is insufficient and Plaintiffs’ claims must fail.
Nevertheless, Defendants point out that Washington has not turned a deaf

; ear to these issues. Although Washington State has not flung wide the prison
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26 || doors, the state has established the mechanism for these issues to be reviewed in
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| their proper forums. If a criminal defendant believes he has been convicted based
 upon race, he may challenge his conviction on appeal or in collateral review

a—y

| provided his allegations of discrimination are based on more than mere
\ speculatlon or conjecture. In addition, Washington State has the means to further
examine these issues through the Minority and Justice Commission for research,
| remedial and preventative action, and for training and educational purposes.
| Finally, these matters may be brought before the Legislature.
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| pursuant to and in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1971.” Id,, 9 35. These claims must
| also fail: |

‘Once again, Plaintiffs do not have the right to vote because they are
{ convicted felons who have been excluded from the elective franchise. Once

NN N P et o —
[ ¥ o =) D [- -] -~ (=,

'Iherefore an offender in Washington must satlsfy all requlrements of his
sentence before he may seek reinstatement, including community semce, post
| release supemsmn, and payment of legal financial obligations. After domg S0,
| the offender may then return to the superior court to request a certificate of
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| discharge. 1d. To the best of Defendants’ knowledge, this is not an issue that
| Mr. Farrakhan has ever challenged; this is not an issue thathas been addressed by
| the Washington appellate courts in a published decision.

Plaintiffs’ claims also fail because they have no right to an automatic
1 process that restores their right to vote when certain “good faith” payments have
| been'made. As the Supreme Court pointed out in Richardson, states may exclude
| a convicted felon from the elective franchise for life. Richardson, 418 U.S. at 56.

| The financial requirements are no less part of the judgment and sentence than the
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| period of incarceration; the financial requirements are no less _]udgments once
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(‘The court may order that its sentence include special conditions or
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requirements, including a specified schedule for the payment of a fine, restitution,
 or other costs, or the performance of community service.”)” A significant
| portion of Mr. Farrakhan’s judgments and sentences include his required
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? See RCW 10.73.160 (“if it appears to the satisfaction of the sentencing
court that payment of the amount due (of costs) will i impose manifest hardship on
' the defendant, . the sentencing court may remit all or part of the amount due in
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! pay, requiring the court to consider the defendant’s financial circumstances, and
| allowmg the defendant who is not in contumacious default to petmon to petmon

B8R

however, the superior court may not reduce the total amount of restitution
{ because the offender may lack the ability to pay the total amount. See RCW
1 9.94A.140(1), .142(1).
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j restitution payments for his theft convictions. Therefore,' Washington does not
| violate the voting rights of the Plaintiffs by requiring satisfaction of all
requirenhents of the judgment and sentence, including financial requlrements
} before restoring voting rights under RCW 9.94A.220. Plaintiffs are not only
| lmproperly asking this Court to review Plaintiffs’ _]udgment and sentence; their
| argument impliedly asks this Court to adopt a policy that restitution obligations
i are somehow less a part (or no part at all) of a judgment and sentence that a
| prisoner might serve. Washington law and policy is clearly to the contrary,

In addmon, Plaintiffs’ nghts are not violated by having to go back to
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| desngned for requests for reinstatement. The superior court can review a
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contested or uncontested request for reinstatement upon a simple motion. Wash.
f Crim. R. (CrR) 8.2 provides that motlons to the court in criminal cases are made
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% Defendants are not required to provide Plaintiffs who have been released
| from prison meaningful access to the courts. See Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S. 817
| (1977); Lewis v. Casey, 518 USS. 343 (1996). If Plaintiffs have been released
from prison, they have the ability to go to the county law library and to file, mail,
or otherwise serve documents in suppoi't of their motion pertaining to
‘ relnstatement. The courthouse is as open to Plaintiffs upon their release from
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| pnson as it is to anyone else.
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| non-moving party by mail. CR 5(b)1); CR 6(e). Each county may include
additional reqmrements in its local rufes. These procedures are not unduly
burdensome.

In addition, the Department of Corrections has further simplified
| procedures by having developed form pleadings to be used when the Department
requests the court to enter a certificate of discharge Department Directive

VL. CONCLUSION |
For all of the foregoing reasons, Defendants respectfully request that this
Court grant their Motion for Summary Judgement and dismiss Plaintiffs’ claim

14 | with prejudice. .
15| RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 3/ _day of July, 2000,
16 | CHRISTINE O. GREGOIRE
17 Attorney General
18 | '
| T. SBA #7397
; Asmstant Attorney General
20 | JEFFREY T. EVEN WSBA #20367
Assistant Attorney
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